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Notice of Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 

will be held on Tuesday, July 29, 2025, at 11.00 a.m. at shorter notice at the Registered office of the Company at The 

Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028 to transact the following business :- 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

Special Business: 

 

(2) To approve the appointment of Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097), who was appointed as an Additional Executive 

Director by the Board of Directors under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, as an Executive Director of the 

Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification(s) 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 161(1) read with Section 196 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) read with Articles of 

Association of the Company and relevant provisions of SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 and 

Circulars/notifications made thereunder from time to time, Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097), who was appointed 

as an Additional Executive Director of the Company with effect from April 24, 2025, and whose term of office expires 

on the date of this Annual General Meeting and based on the recommendation of Board of Directors, Ms. Shuchi Kothari 

(DIN: 03243097) be and is hereby appointed as an Executive Director of the Company for a period of five years with 

effect from April 24, 2025, to April 23, 2030, with a remuneration in the range of Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs 

Only) to Rs. 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Only) per annum (which shall include the basic salary, performance pay 

compensation, provident fund, gratuity, perquisites, allowances and benefits and increments therein from time to time 

as per the rules and regulations of the Company), not liable to retire by rotation.” 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director(s) and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are 

hereby authorized to make necessary entries in the applicable registers, file/upload necessary e-form(s) and all other 

necessary forms / information with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the relevant rules issued thereunder, file other necessary documents with various other regulatory 

authorities and do all such acts, deeds and things that are necessary to give effect to the above resolution." 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.dspim.com/
mailto:dspam@dspim.com


 

2 | P a g e  
             DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 
             Registered Office: The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai 400028, India 
             CIN U65990MH2021PTC362316 • +91 22 6657 8000 • www.dspim.com • Email: dspam@dspim.com  

 

 

“RESOLVED FINALLY THAT Mr. Harsh Kothari, Chief Operating Officer and Dr. Pritesh Majmudar, Head – Legal 

& Compliance of the Company be and are hereby jointly and / or severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 

things that are necessary to give effect to the above resolutions including intimation to the regulatory authorities, file 

necessary declarations etc. and give copy of this resolution on demand.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 

The Ruby, 25th Floor,  

29, Senapati Bapat Marg,  

Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028  

 

Date: July 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE COMPANY 

 

 

                                                                    Sd/- 

Pritesh Majmudar (Dr.) 

Company Secretary 

FCS 6259 

403, Girikujan Society, New Nagardas Cross Road, 

Andheri (East), Near Chinai College, 

Mumbai 400069 
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NOTES: 

 

(i) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 

A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

 

(ii) Instrument of proxy, for use at the above meeting, must be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company not 

later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting. 

 

(iii) Corporate Members are requested to send to the Registered Office of the Company a duly certified copy of the 

Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their representative to attend 

and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

(iv) Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013, for Items No. 2 is annexed and forms 

part of this notice. 

 

(v) Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement is open for inspection 

by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during business 

hours up to the date of the AGM. 

 

(vi) The Statutory Registers maintained by the Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, will be 

available for inspection of members at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

(vii) The Members are requested to notify promptly any change in their address to the Company and are requested to 

register their e-mail address (if not provided earlier) and changes if any, therein, to enable the Company to send 

all communications to shareholders in electronic mode/e-mail. 

 

(viii) Members/proxies should bring duly attendance slip sent herewith to attend the meeting. 

 

(ix) Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report at the Annual General Meeting. 

Members seeking any information on the Accounts are requested to write to the Company, which should reach 

the Company at least three days before the date of the Annual General Meeting so as to enable the Management 

to keep the information ready. Replies will be provided only at the Annual General Meeting. 

 

(x) The route map and prominent landmark along with the formats of the attendance slip (along with instructions 

thereto) and Proxy form are enclosed herewith. 
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(xi) Members of the Company had appointed M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101248W/W-

100022) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of five years to hold the office from the conclusion 

of the First Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE COMPANY 

                            

 

                                                               Sd/- 

Pritesh Majmudar (Dr.) 

Company Secretary 

FCS 6259  

403, Girikujan Society, New Nagardas Cross Road,  

Andheri (East), Near Chinai College, 

Mumbai 400069 

 

 

  

REGISTERED OFFICE: 

The Ruby, 25th Floor,  

29, Senapati Bapat Marg,  

Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028  

Date: July 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 

Item No. 2- Appointment of Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097) as Executive Director of the Company.  

Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097) was appointed as an Additional Executive Director of the Company by the Board 

of Directors at its meeting held on April 24, 2025. As per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

applicable provisions of the Article of Association of the Company, Ms. Shuchi Kothari shall hold the office upto the 

date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

Ms. Shuchi Kothari pursued Bachelor of Science in Economics (BSE) from the Wharton Business School at the 

University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia, USA, and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) from 

the Harvard Business School in Boston, Massachusetts. 

Ms. Shuchi also serves as a Director and Member on the Board of Shuko Real Estate Private Limited, DSP HMK 

Holdings Private Limited, Muhavra Enterprises Private limited, Kaizen Commercial Private Limited and a Director on 

the Board of Reclamation Realty (India) Private Limited. She also serves as a Designated Partner in Greenstone Sponsor 

and Manager LLP, Cephalopod Teknik-II, LLP, Greenstone Advisors LLP etc. She is also an employee of DSP 

Investment Private Limited.  

Further, Ms. Shuchi Kothari also serves as a Partner in D.S. Purbhodas & Co. and serves as a Trustee on the governing 

Board of Wildlife Conservation Trust and Hemendra Kothari Foundation.  

Additional Information as required under Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) notified under Section 

118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows: 

Name of the Director Ms. Shuchi Kothari  

Director Identification Number 03243097 

Designation / Category of the Director Executive Director 

Age 40 years 

Qualifications Bachelor of Science in Economics (BSE) from the Wharton 

Business School at the University of Pennsylvania in 

Philadelphia, USA, and a Master’s degree in Business 

Administration (MBA) from the Harvard Business School in 

Boston, Massachusetts. 

Experience As detailed above in the explanatory statement. 

Terms and conditions of appointment As detailed in the respective resolutions and explanatory 

statement. 

Details of remuneration sought to be paid She shall be paid remuneration in the range of Rs. 50,00,000/- 

(Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only) to Rs. 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two 

Crores Only) per annum which should include the basic salary, 

variable incentive performance pay compensation, provident 

fund, gratuity, perquisites, allowances and benefits and 
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increments therein from time to time as per the rules and 

regulations of the Company.  

Remuneration last drawn by such person NA 

Date of first appointment on Board April 24, 2025 

Shareholding in the Company 1,50,00,000 shares i.e., 6% of the total paid up capital of the 

Company.  

Relationship with other Directors, manager and 

other key managerial personnel of the Company. 

Sister of Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai (Executive Director and 

Chairperson of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited) 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 

the year 

NA as her appointment was made in the financial year 2025-2026.  

Other Directorships, Membership/Chairmanship 

of Committees of other Boards 

As detailed above in the explanatory statement. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Shuchi Kothari fulfills the conditions of her appointment as an Executive Director on 

the Board. The Board of Directors hereby recommends the aforementioned resolution for the approval of the Members. 

None of the Directors, except Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai, Executive Director and Chairperson, who is the relative of Ms. 

Shuchi Kothari and Ms. Desai, who, being interested in the resolution, restrained herself from participating in the 

discussion while the Board recommended this resolution. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE COMPANY 

                                  

 

                                                                Sd/- 

Pritesh Majmudar (Dr.) 

Company Secretary 

FCS 6259 

403, Girikujan Society, New Nagardas Cross Road, 

Andheri (East), Near Chinai College, 

Mumbai 400069 

 

  

REGISTERED OFFICE: 

The Ruby, 25th Floor,  

29, Senapati Bapat Marg,  

Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028  

  

Date: July 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai  
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DSP ASSET MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

CIN: U65990MH2021PTC362316 

 

Registered Office: The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai-400028. 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

4th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON TUESDAY, JULY 29, 2025 

 

Name :  

Address :  

DP ID No. :  

Client ID :  

No. of Equity Shares 

held 

:  

 

I certify that I am a registered member/proxy for the Registered Member of the Company. 

I hereby record my presence at the 4TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held at the Registered 

office of the Company at The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028 on Tuesday, 

29th July 2025.  

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature 

NOTES: 

1. Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance slip with them when they come to the meeting 

and hand it over at the entrance after affixing signature. 

2. Members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report along with them to the meeting. 
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Form No. MGT-11 

PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014) 

 

CIN of Company: U65990MH2021PTC362316  

Name of Company: DSP Asset Managers Private Limited  

Address of its Registered Office: The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai- 400028 

Name of the shareholder(s)  

Registered address  

E-mail Id  

Folio No / Client ID  

DP ID  

 

I/We, being the shareholder(s) of ……………………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint: 

1. Name  ……………………………………………………….. 

Address ……………………………………………………….. 

Email-id 

………………………………………………………… 

Signature ………………………… Or failing him 

  

2. Name  ……………………………………………………….. 

Address ……………………………………………………….. 

Email-id 

………………………………………………………… 

Signature ……………………………… Or failing him 

  

3. Name  ……………………………………………………….. 

Address ……………………………………………………….. 

Email-id 

………………………………………………………… 

Signature ………………………………… Or failing him 

As my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 4th Annual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held on shorter notice on Tuesday, July 29, 2025, at 11.00 a.m. at The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai-400028 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions 

as are indicated below: 

 

Resolution 

No. 

Type of 

Resolution 

Resolutions  

   

Ordinary Business 

 

1 Ordinary 

Resolution 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, and the reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon. 

   

Special Business 
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2 Ordinary 

Resolution 

(3) To approve the appointment of Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097), who was 

appointed as an Additional Executive Director by the Board of Directors under 

Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, as an Executive Director of the 

Company and to consider and if thought fit pass the resolutions with or without 

modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

 

Signed this ……….. day of ……………….. 2025 

 

Signature of shareholder                      Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Affix 

revenue 

stamp 
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Map of the Venue of the Annual General Meeting 
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Directors’ Report 

DSP ASSET MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

 

To the Members, 

 

 Your Directors are pleased to present the Fourth Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the period ended March 

31, 2025. 

 

1. Company Profile:  

 

DSP Asset Managers Private Limited (‘the Company’) is registered under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and was carrying on Asset Management 

business during the year ended March 31, 2025.  

 

The Company, during the said financial year, provided: 

• Investment Management Services to: 

o DSP Mutual Fund 

o the AMC is the holding company of DSP Fund Managers IFSC Private Limited and is eligible to provide non-binding investment advisory services 

to the funds based out of IFSC GIFT City & DSP ICAV, an umbrella type Irish Collective Asset-Management Vehicle. 

o DSP Alternative Investment Fund Category III (DSPAIF – C - III) (SEBI registration no. IN/AIF3/13-14/0059) 

• Investment management and trade execution related services to offshore sovereign funds  

• Non-binding advisory services to offshore funds/ offshore investment manager, who is managing an offshore fund which will invest through FPI route. 

 

2. Share Capital:  

During the year, there is no change in the Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the Company compared to the previous year.  

 

As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 500,01,00,000 comprising of 50,00,10,000 equity shares of INR10/- each. 

The Company had Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of Rs. 250 Crores comprising of 25 crores equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each. The 

Company has received the subscription money of Rs. 250 crores from the subscribers of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. The Subscribers 

of the Company are as follows:  
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3. Financial Results:  

 

The summarized standalone financial results for the period ended on March 31, 2025, are as under:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The summarized consolidated financial results for the period ended on March 31, 2025, are as under:  

 

Name of Subscribers No of shares allotted Face value per share 

DSP HMK Holdings Private 

Limited  

13,50,00,000  10 

DSP Adiko Holdings Private 

Limited  

8,50,00,000 10 

Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai  1,50,00,000 10 

Ms. Shuchi Kothari  1,50,00,000 10 

Total 25,00,00,000 10 

Particulars As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

  (Rs. In million) (Rs. In million) 

Income 9,827.02 8,285.45 

Profit before tax 5,052.04 4,052.23 

Provision of Taxation 1,090.98 951.54 

Profit After Taxation  3,961.05 3,100.69 

Other Comprehensive income (54.99) (10.19) 

Balance brought forward 9,433.96 6,343.45 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 13,340.03 9,433.96 

Particulars As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

  (Rs. In million) (Rs. In million) 

Income 10,590.05 8,355.94 

Profit before tax 5604.94 4044.76 

Provision of Taxation 1093.31 956.02 
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The net worth of the Company (Standalone) as on March 31, 2025, was Rs. 15,840.03 million. 

 

4. State of the Company’s Affairs:  

 

The financial statements of the Company reflect the performance of the Company on a consolidated basis. The financial statements for the financial year 

ended on March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024, have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) as prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder (“Act”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. During the financial year 

under review, the total income has increased from Rs.8355.94 million to Rs.10590.05 million and the total expenses have increased from Rs.4311.19 million 

to Rs.4985.11 million as compared to the previous financial year. The Company has made a profit after tax of Rs.4511.63 million as compared to the 

previous financial year profit after tax of Rs. 3088.74 million.  

 

5. Consolidated Financial Statements: 

 

In terms of Section 129(3) of the Act the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with relevant Indian Accounting 

Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and forms an integral part of this Report. 

 

6. Change in nature of business: 

 

During the year under purview, there has been no change in nature of business of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

Profit After Taxation  4,511.63 3088.74 

Other Comprehensive income -36.46 -10.62 

Balance brought forward 9492.37 6414.24 

Profit after Comprehensive 

income 4475.17 3078.12 

Non-Controlling Interest Nil Nil 

NCI acquired during the year* Nil Nil 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet* 13,967.54 9492.37 

http://www.dspim.com/
mailto:dspam@dspim.com


 

 

 

4 

DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 
Registered Office: The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai 400028, India 
CIN U65990MH2021PTC362316 • +91 22 6657 8000 • www.dspim.com • Email: dspam@dspim.com  

 

 

7. Dividends:  

 

Though your Company continued to register profits during the financial year ended March 31, 2025, your Directors consider it prudent to conserve resources 

and therefore do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

8. Unpaid Dividend and IEPF:  

 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying in Unpaid Dividend A/c of the 

Company.  

 

9. Transfer to Reserve:  

 

The Board of Directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year under review. 

 

10. Business Review: 

 

a. Mutual Fund: 

 

The Company manages funds of the Scheme(s) of the Mutual Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Management Agreement executed 

by the Company with DSP Trustee Private Limited (the Trust Deed constituting the Mutual Fund, Mutual Fund Regulations, and the investment objectives 

& strategy of the Scheme(s)). The DSP Mutual Fund managed 70 open ended schemes and 4 closed ended schemes as on March 31, 2025. 

 

The Company manages the assets of the following open-ended schemes of the Mutual Fund: 

 

Sr No. Name of Scheme(s) 
AUM of Scheme* 

(Rs in Crores) 

1 DSP Quant Fund 976.04 

2 DSP Nifty IT ETF 35.99 

3 DSP Nifty Midcap 150 Quality 50 Index Fund 388.37 

4 DSP Short Term Fund 3,061.14 

5 DSP Savings Fund 4,324.92 
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6 DSP Banking & PSU Debt Fund 3,408.71 

7 DSP Nifty 1D Rate Liquid ETF 574.21 

8 DSP Nifty Top 10 Equal Weight ETF 572.91 

9 DSP Nifty 50 Equal Weight Index Fund 1,984.11 

10 DSP Global Innovation Fund of Fund 881.78 

11 DSP Nifty Private Bank Index Fund 11.27 

12 DSP TOP 100 Equity Fund$ 5,070.92 

13 DSP Bond Fund 305.22 

14 DSP Nifty Bank ETF 523.73 

15 DSP Nifty PSU Bank ETF 62.41 

16 DSP Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund 3,216.69 

17 DSP ELSS Tax Saver Fund 16,218.35 

18 DSP Strategic Bond Fund 1,503.62 

19 DSP Credit Risk Fund 207.05 

20 DSP Liquidity Fund 15,828.84 

21 DSP Natural Resources and New Energy Fund 1,232.36 

22 DSP Nifty Bank Index Fund 46.88 

23 DSP Healthcare Fund 3,018.59 

24 DSP Global Clean Energy Fund of Fund^ 79.33 

25 DSP 10Y G-Sec Fund 59.07 

26 DSP Nifty Smallcap250 Quality 50 Index Fund 205.78 

27 DSP Equity Opportunities Fund$ 13,784.81 

28 DSP BSE Sensex Next 30 Index Fund 8.15 

29 DSP US Treasury Fund of Fund 61.45 

30 DSP Aggressive Hybrid Fund^ 10,174.93 

31 DSP US Flexible Equity Fund of Fund^ 785.86 

32 DSP Nifty Top 10 Equal Weight Index Fund 1,498.21 

33 DSP Banking & Financial Services Fund 1,135.61 

34 DSP Nifty SDL Plus G-Sec Sep 2027 50:50 Index Fund 83.79 

35 DSP Nifty Midcap 150 Quality 50 ETF 91.67 

36 DSP Nifty Next 50 Index Fund 899.17 

37 DSP Overnight Fund 1,366.70 

38 DSP CRISIL SDL Plus G-Sec Apr 2033 50:50 Index Fund$ 391.00 
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39 DSP BSE Sensex Next 30 ETF 17.02 

40 DSP India T.I.G.E.R. Fund 4,879.57 

41 DSP Midcap Fund 17,203.61 

42 DSP Gold ETF 774.21 

43 DSP Small Cap Fund 14,269.13 

44 DSP Flexi Cap Fund 11,154.18 

45 DSP Corporate Bond Fund 2,668.81 

46 DSP Nifty 50 Index Fund 682.53 

47 DSP Gilt Fund 1,565.83 

48 DSP World Mining Fund of Fund^# 125.74 

49 DSP Silver ETF 375.06 

50 DSP Ultra Short Fund 3,349.30 

51 DSP NIFTY 50 EQUAL WEIGHT ETF 502.71 

52 DSP Nifty Private Bank ETF 378.06 

53 DSP BSE Sensex ETF 8.10 

54 DSP Low Duration Fund 4,196.39 

55 DSP Floater Fund 536.67 

56 DSP Focus Fund$ 2,447.50 

57 DSP Income Plus Arbitrage Fund of Fund^ 30.90 

58 DSP Nifty Healthcare ETF 9.77 

59 DSP Gold ETF Fund of Fund 0.33 

60 DSP Multi Asset Allocation Fund 2,308.20 

61 DSP Business Cycle Fund 976.71 

62 DSP Nifty 50 ETF 342.60 

63 DSP World Gold Fund of Fund 1,146.22 

64 DSP Equity Savings Fund 2,517.64 

65 DSP BSE Liquid Rate ETF 2,686.33 

66 DSP Multicap Fund 1,958.99 

67 DSP Value Fund 926.63 

68 DSP Arbitrage Fund 5,261.49 

69 DSP Nifty SDL Plus G-Sec Jun 2028 30:70 Index Fund 2,178.90 

70 DSP Regular Savings Fund 163.53 
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*AUM as on March 31, 2025: Rs. 1,80,758.04 crores 

^ Scheme name changed pursuant to Fundamental Attribute change of the scheme. 

# Investors are requested to note that DSP World Agriculture Fund has been merged with DSP World Mining fund, effective from the close of business 

hours of October 4, 2024. ("Effective Date").  

$ Note: 

With effect from May 01, 2025 

Name of DSP Equity Opportunities Fund has been revised to DSP Large & Mid Cap Fund. 

Name of DSP TOP 100 Equity Fund has been revised to DSP Large Cap Fund. 

Name of DSP Focus Fund has been revised to DSP Focused Fund. 

Pursuant to change in nomenclature of the underlying Index, the name and benchmark of DSP CRISIL SDL Plus G-Sec Apr 2033 50:50 Index Fund stands 

revised to ‘DSP CRISIL-IBX 50:50 Gilt Plus SDL – April 2033 Index Fund’ with effect from May 27, 2025.  

The Company also manages close ended debt oriented schemes viz. Fixed Maturity Plans i.e., DSP FMP - Series 264 - 60M - 17D, DSP FMP Series - 267 

- 1246 Days, DSP FMP Series - 268 - 1281 Days and DSP FMP Series - 270 - 1144 Days.   

b. Alternative Investment Fund:  

 

The Investment Manager manages 3 open ended schemes and 1 closed ended scheme as on March 31, 2025, which were launched by DSP Alternative 

Investment Fund - Category III (‘AIF Fund’), a SEBI registered Category III Alternative Investment Fund set-up under the AIF Regulations. The details 

of the same are as follows: 

• DSP India Enhanced Equity Fund, an open-ended scheme was the first scheme offered by DSP AIF Fund on May 2014;  

• DSP India Enhanced Equity SatCore Fund, an open-ended scheme was launched on February 2017;  

• DSP High Conviction Fund Series 2, a close-ended scheme was launched on March 2022; 

• DSP Bharat Nirman Fund, an open-ended scheme was launched in May 15, 2024.  
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c. DSP Global Funds ICAV:  

 

In order to expand its footprint globally, DSP Group, has setup DSP Global Funds ICAV (the “ICAV”), an umbrella type Irish Collective Asset-

management Vehicle, authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (“Central Bank”) to carry on business as an ICAV and the two sub-funds under ICAV 

namely, DSP India Equity Fund and DSP India Bond Fund (collectively referred as “ICAV Funds” or any new sub-fund setup under the umbrella of ICAV) 

are registered with SEBI as Category I FPI under the SEBI’s FPI regime, for investing in Indian securities market. 

The Company acts as an Investment Manager to ICAV Funds in terms of no objection received from SEBI vide its letter dated October 27, 2015, for 

providing management and advisory services to pooled assets (broad based funds). 

DSP India Equity Fund was launched on March 15, 2021. The AUM of DSP India Equity Fund was ~33.08US$ mn as of June 30, 2025. 

11. Subsidiary/joint ventures/associate companies & its performance:  

 

During the year, the Company have two Subsidiaries namely DSP Pension Fund Managers Private Limited (DSPPFM) and DSP Fund Managers IFSC 

Private Limited (DSPIFSC).  

 

The summarized financial results of DSPPFM for the year ended March 31, 2025, are as under:  

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs. in million) 

Income 62.65 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax -46.93 

(Provision of Taxation) -2.71 

Profit/ (Loss) After Taxation  -44.22 

(Total Comprehensive Income) -43.93 

Balance brought forward 172.30 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 128.37 

Net worth 573.37 
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The summarized financial results of DSP Fund Managers IFSC Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025, are as under:  

 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs. in million) 

Income 820.34 

Profit before tax 601.58 

Provision of Taxation 5.03 

Profit After Taxation  596.55 

Total Comprehensive Income 613.04 

Balance brought forward -116.81 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 601.36 

Net worth 971.36 

 

The statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed format AOC–1 is appended as 

Annexure I to the Report. Further, the audited financial statements in respect of subsidiaries of the Company are available at the Registered Office of the 

Company for review of members. 

 

During the year, the Company did not have any Joint Ventures or Associate Companies. Hence the details of performance and financial position of Joint 

Ventures or Associate Companies are not offered.  

 

12. Material changes:  

 

There were no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial 

year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the Report. 

 

13. Board of Directors: 

 

(A) Composition of the Board of Directors: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025, comprises of seven Directors as below: 
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1. Mr. Hemendra Kothari, Chairman and Non-Executive Director 

2. Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai, Executive Director 

3. Mr. Kalpen Parekh, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

4. Mr. Ramadorai Subramanian, Independent Director (pursuant to SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations) 

5. Mr. Dhananjay Mungale, Independent Director (pursuant to SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations) 

6. Mr. Subhash S. Mundra, Independent Director (pursuant to SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations) 

7. Mr. Vishwanathan Iyer, Independent Director (pursuant to SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations) 

As per article 58 of Articles of Association of your company, the following are the first directors of the Company: 

 

i. Mr. Hemendra Kothari 

ii. Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai 

 

The Board at its meeting held on April 24, 2025, had taken note of resignation of Mr. Hemendra Kothari (DIN: 00009873) as Chairman and Non-Executive 

Director from the Board of the Company with effect from April 11, 2025.  

  

 Further, Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai (DIN: 00426799) has been appointed as an Executive Director and Chairperson on the Board of the Company with effect 

from April 24, 2025, and Ms. Shuchi Kothari (DIN: 03243097) has been appointed as an Additional Executive Director on the Board of the Company with 

effect from April 24, 2025.. Furthermore, the appointment of Ms. Shuchi Kothari as an Additional Executive Director of the Company would be regularised 

as an Executive Director at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on July 29, 2025.  

 

(B)  Committee(s) of Board of Directors:  

 

As per the Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, SEBI (Alternative 

Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012 and amendment thereof including various circulars/guidelines/letters/notifications issued by Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Association of Mutual Funds in India and other applicable regulatory Bodies, the Company was required to constitute the following 

committees and approve the terms of reference of committees.  
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The Board has constituted the following Committee(s) of Directors at its meeting held on April 1, 2023, and have approved the reconstitution wherever 

required, scope, terms of reference and other terms and conditions of the said committees from time to time.  

1. Audit Committee 

 

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Dhananjay Mungale – Chairman (Independent Director), Mr. Subhash Mundra (Independent Director), and Mr. 

Ramadorai Subramanian (Independent Director). 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes reviewing the half yearly and annual financial statements of Mutual Fund, annual financial 

statements of the Company, internal control systems, internal audit plan, SEBI inspection reports, audit reports and observations of statutory and internal 

auditors, implementation of audit recommendations as well as compliance of regulations with regard to operations of the Company, the Mutual Fund 

and the Alternative Investment Fund. 

2. Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee 

 

During the year, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of Mr. Hemendra Kothari (Chairman), Mr. Ramadorai Subramanian 

(Independent Director) and Mr. Dhananjay Mungale (Independent Director). Further, post resignation of Mr. Hemendra Kothari with effect from April 

11, 2025, Ms. Aditi Kothari Desai had been appointed as a Chairperson of the CSR Committee with effect from April 11, 2025.  

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee include formulation and recommendation of CSR Policy and Annual Action Plan of the Company, 

recommendation of expenditure for CSR activities, monitoring implementation of the CSR projects/ activities undertaken by the Company and 

implementing CSR Policy. 

3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’):  

 

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprises of Mr. S. Ramadorai (Chairman), Mr. Dhananjay Mungale 

(Independent Director) and Mr. Hemendra Kothari (Director). Further, post resignation of Mr. Hemendra Kothari with effect from April 11, 2025, Mr. 

Vishwanathan Iyer (Independent Director) had been appointed as the Member of the NRC with effect from April 11, 2025.  

The terms of reference of NRC include review of succession planning for the Key Management Personnel (KMP), review the compensation of MD & 

CEO, review the compensation and appointment of Executive Director, determination of all the terms and implementation of the Employee Stock 

Option Scheme in line with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and applicable regulations. 
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4. Risk Management Committee (‘RMC’): 

 

The RMC comprises of Mr. S.S. Mundra (Chairman), Mr. Kalpen Parekh (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer) Mr. S. Ramadorai 

(Independent Director). 

The terms of reference of RMC includes review of all the risk affairs and audit observations pertaining to the Mutual Fund and Alternative Investment 

Fund business, review and approve the risk appetite, risk metric and tolerance limits for Company and schemes, annually review and approve changes 

to the roles and responsibilities of the CRO and CXOs and the Delegation of Power (DoP) and such other matters specified by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 read with various amendments and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time. 

 Our risk management framework is guided by a comprehensive set of principles and standards that include policies, procedures, and clearly defined 

roles and responsibilities for management, the Board of the Asset Management Company, and the Board of Trustees. 

 

5. Unit Holder Protection Committee (‘UHPC’): 

 

Unit Holder Protection Committee (‘UHPC’) of the Company was constituted at the Board Meeting of the Company held on October 19, 2023, pursuant 

to Regulation 25(24) of SEBI Mutual Fund Regulations, 1996 read along with clause 6.7c of SEBI Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/IMD/IMD-PoD-

1/P/CIR/2024/90 dated June 27, 2024 (‘SEBI Master Circular’) on roles and responsibilities of Trustees and Board of Directors of Asset Management 

Companies (AMCs) of Mutual Funds.  

The UHPC comprises of Mr. Vishwanathan Iyer (Chairman), Mr. Subhash Mundra (Independent Director), Mr. Dhananjay Mungale (Independent 

Director) and Mr. Kalpen Parekh (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer).  

The terms of reference of UHPC include protection of interest of unit holders, ensuring adoption of sound and healthy market practices, compliance 

with laws and regulations and other related processes and such other responsibilities as provided in SEBI Master Circular and the Board of Directors 

of DSPAM, from time to time may also assign such other responsibilities to the UHPC, as deemed fit. 

6. Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee:  

 

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of the Company was constituted at the Board Meeting of the Company held on April 01, 2023, and 

pursuant to clause 6.15 read along with Annexure 8 of SEBI Master Circular no. SEBI/HO/IMD/IMD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/90 dated June 27, 2024 

(‘SEBI Master Circular’).  
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The IT Strategy Committee comprises Mr. Ramadorai Subramanian (Independent Director), Chief Operating Officer, Head- Technology and Head- 

Legal and Compliance of the Company.   

The terms of reference of the IT Strategy Committee includes reviewing of Information Security reports, findings and action plans including but not 

limited to the SEBI Master Circular & other relevant circulars/notification/guidelines/letters/mails issued by SEBI or AMFI from time to time. 

Various committees other than mentioned above including Executive Risk Management Committee, Investment Committee for DSP Mutual Fund, 

Investment Committee for DSP Alternative Investment Fund, Credit Committee, Stewardship Committee, Information Technology Committee, 

Suspicious Transactions Reporting Committee, Valuation Committee and Executive Committee were constituted w.e.f. April 01, 2023 and subsequently 

have revised the scope, terms of reference and other terms and conditions of the said committees as and when required from time to time.    

14. Meetings of the Board:  

 

A. Board of Directors Meetings: 

 

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings were held on April 25, 2024, July 19, 

2024, October 23, 2024, and January 21, 2025.  

 

B. Committee of Directors Meetings: 

 

Four meetings of the Audit Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings were held on April 24, 

2024, July 18, 2024, October 22, 2024, and January 20, 2025.  

 

Four meetings of Risk Management Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings were held on 

April 24, 2024, July 18, 2024, October 22, 2024, and January 20, 2025.  

 

Four meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings 

were held on April 16, 2024, July 18, 2024, October 22, 2024, and January 20, 2025.   

 

Three meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings 

were held on April 16, 2024, July 18, 2024, and October 22, 2024. 

 

Four meetings of the Unit Holder Protection Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These meetings were 

held on April 24, 2024, July 18, 2024, October 22, 2024, January 20, 2025. 
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Two meetings of the Information Technology Strategy Committee of the Company were held during the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These 

meetings were held on May 09, 2024, and November 05, 2024.  

 

The details of attendance of the Directors in the meeting of the Board of Directors and Committee(s) of Directors during the financial year ended March  

31, 2025, is given below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation No. of 

Board 

meetings 

attended 

No. of 

Audit 

Committee 

meetings 

Attended 

No. of CSR 

Committee 

meetings 

attended 

No. of 

NRC 

Committee 

meetings 

attended 

No. of 

RMC 

meeting 

attended 

No. of Unit 

Holder 

Protection 

Committee 

Meeting 

attended  

No. of 

Information 

Technology 

Strategy 

Committee 

Meeting 

attended  

1 Mr. Hemendra 

Kothari 

Director  4 N.A. 4 3 N.A. N.A. N.A. 

2 Mr. Vishwanathan 

Iyer  

Independent 

Director^ 

4 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 4 N.A. 

3 Mr. Ramadorai 

Subramaniam 

Independent 

Director^ 

3 2 3 2 2 N.A. 2 

4 Ms. Aditi Kothari 

Desai 

Director 4 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

5 Mr. Dhananjay 

Mungale 

Independent 

Director^ 

4 4 3 3 N.A. 3 N.A. 

6 Mr. Subhash S 

Mundra  

Independent 

Director^ 

4 4 N.A. N.A. 4 4 N.A. 

7 Mr. Kalpen 

Parekh 

Managing 

Director & 

Chief 

4 N.A. N.A. N.A. 4 4 N.A. 
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N.A. – Not a member of the Committee  

^ Independent Director in terms of SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 

 

15. Key Managerial Personnel:   

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 

16. Independent Directors: 

 

The Company being Private Limited Company, provisions of Section 149 of the Act for the appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the 

Company. Hence, the statement on declaration to be given by the Independent Director is not offered. Also, statements regarding opinion of the Board with 

regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the year along with details of re-

appointment of independent directors under provisions of section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not offered. 

 

However, the Company has appointed Independent Directors as per the requirements of SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 as amended till date and 

Circulars issued thereunder and the requisite declarations from such Directors have been obtained at the time of their respective appointments. 

 

17. Auditors:  

 

M/s. B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101248W/W-100022) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five 

years to hold the office from 1st Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company at such remuneration plus 

GST as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 

Statutory Auditors. 

 

 

 

Executive 

Officer 

Total Number of meetings held 4 4 4 3 4 4 2 
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18. Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by Statutory Auditors and 

Secretarial Auditors if any:  

 

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditor. The observations and comments given by the 

Statutory Auditors in their report read together with notes on financial statements are self-explanatory and hence does not require any further comments in 

terms of Section 134 of the Act. Further, Secretarial audit is not applicable to the Company, hence the comments are not offered.  

 

19. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Exports/Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

 

a. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption:  

 

The Company does not carry any manufacturing activity. Hence, the particulars required to be furnished in the Directors’ Report under section 134(3)(m) 

of the Act read with Rule 8(3)(A) and (B) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to energy conservation and technology absorption are not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

b. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:  

 

The earnings in foreign currency for the FY 2024-25 is Rs.531.33 million and the total expenditure incurred in foreign currency is Rs.39.77 million as per 

the audited financials. 

 

20. Directors Responsibility Statement:  

 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, 

the Board of Directors hereby confirms that:  

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the March 31, 2025, and of the profit of the company for that 

period; 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act 

for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
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d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively.  

 

21. Secretarial Standards:  

 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, 

respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 

 

22. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

 Pursuant to section 135 of the Act and the Rules, the CSR activities/initiatives undertaken by the Company and a brief outline on Corporate Social 

Responsibility (‘CSR’) Policy of the Company are annexed herewith as Annexure II and Annexure III respectively. 

 

23. Annual Return and Web Link of Annual Return:  

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act the Annual Return as on the financial year ended March 31, 2025, is placed on the Company’s 

website at https://www.dspim.com/mandatory-disclosures/amc-financials.  

 

24. Particulars of Contract and arrangements with related parties: 

 

All transactions/contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related party (ies) as defined under the provisions of Section 2(76) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review were in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Further, none of these contracts / 

arrangements / transactions with related parties could be considered material in nature as per the thresholds given in Rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings 

of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and hence no disclosure is required to be given in this regard.  

 

25. Risk management:  

 

Your Company has committed to the highest standard of risk management. To this effect the following measures has been taken for the Mutual Fund and 

the AIF Fund: 
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I. Appointment of an independent internal audit firm for Mutual Fund and AIF Fund.  

II. Further, the Company have implemented an Enterprise Risk Management framework encompassing the following components for the Mutual Fund 

and subset of the same for all other line of businesses:  

1. Governance and Organization 

2. Identification of Risks 

3. Measurement and Management of Risks 

4. Reporting of Risks and Related Information 

 

Further, the Legal and Compliance Department of the Company obtains Compliance Certification from concerned Heads of functions confirming 

compliance with the applicable Acts, Rules, and Regulation applicable to the respective departments on quarterly basis.  

 

26. Internal Financial Controls:  

 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company, are adequate. During the year under 

review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 

27. Reporting of Fraud:  

 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review which required the Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and / or Board under 

Section 143(12) of Act and Rules framed thereunder. 

 

28. Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace:  

 

In line with the requirement of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a 

policy on Prohibition of Sexual Harassment at workplace which is applicable to the Company and duly constituted the Internal Complaints Committee 

(“ICC”) and summary of complaints received and resolved during the reporting period is mentioned below;  

 

No of complaints received during the year 2024-

25 

No of complaints disposed within the timelines 

during the year 2024-25 

Number of cases pending for more than 

ninety days 

1 1 Nil  
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29. Compliance regarding Maternity Benefit Act, 1961: 

 

The Company has complied with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, to the extent applicable. 

 

30. Whistle Blower Policy: 

 

As a good Corporate Governance, the Company has established a robust Whistle blower policy to conduct its business activities in the highest professional 

manner consistent with the values and principles. 

 

 Any employee of the Company who becomes aware of illegal or unethical conduct is required to report such a matter to the Head of Human Resources and 

Compliance officer of the Company by raising Whistle-blower through an e-mail.  

 

31. Loans, guarantee, security acquisition and Investment made by the company: 

 

 There are no loans, guarantee, security and acquisition made by the company during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

  

 The details of Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 

are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

32. Particulars of Employees: 

 

The details of employees in receipt of remuneration pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule, 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, are not applicable to the Company. 

 

33. Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

 

M/s. KFin Technologies Private Limited are the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company. 

 

34. Employee Stock Option Scheme: 

 

With the objective of rewarding and motivating employees for their long association and in recognition of their dedicated service to the Company and also 

to attract and retain the best talent, erstwhile, DSP Investment Managers Pvt. Ltd. introduced ‘Employees Stock Option Scheme 2019’ (‘ESOP 2019’) to  
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grant Stock Options to certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to demerger, the Company adopted Employees Stock Option 

Scheme 2023 (‘ESOP Scheme’), which is similar to ESOP 2019.  The Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) have constituted the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) and at its meeting held on April 01, 2023, and gave powers to formulate an Employees Stock Options Scheme for the 

Company.  

 

Based on the recommendation of NRC, the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company at their Board meeting and Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

held on April 14, 2023, and May 02, 2023, respectively approved the amended ESOP Scheme. NRC has approved the settlement of all the Stock Options 

in cash, till further notice. Further, as an employee friendly measure, the Exercise window is open throughout the year and the Company intends to get the 

Fair Valuation of shares on half yearly basis. The ESOP Scheme authorizes the NRC to determine the grant price of the stock options, vesting period and 

other conditionality’s as provided in the ESOP Scheme. 

 

A summary on Stock options is highlighted below:  

 

Total no. of Options 1,04,16,667  Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4 Tranche 5 Tranche 6 

Grant Price 
 70.4 70.4 70.4 150.16 

122.02, 

140.05, 

141.03 

 

Options Granted:        

01-Apr-23* 61,90,100 56,79,600 - 3,58,400 1,52,100   

24-Jun-23 13,84,200     13,84,200  
 

       

Total Options Granted 75,74,300 56,79,600 - 3,58,400 1,52,100 13,84,200 - 
 

       

Less: Options Lapsed 7,16,300 4,87,000 - 26,100 67,300 135,900 
 

 
       

Balance Outstanding 

[Granted] 

68,58,000 51,92,600 - 3,32,300 84,800 12,48,300 - 

 
       

No. of Options Vested        

31-March -25 29,68,750 29,68,750 - - - - - 
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No. of Options Exercised        

In FY -24 -25 5,73,150 5,73,150 0 0 0 0 0 

* Options grandfathered from DSP Investment Managers Private Limited 

 

• Total number of options arising as a result of exercise of option: Nil since it is cash settled ESOP scheme. 

• Variation of Terms of options: None 

• Money realized by exercise of options : Rs. 9,82,49,440/- 

• Total Number of Options in force: 62,84,850 

 

35. Disclosure Under Section 43(A)(ii) of the Act: 

 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 

4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

36. Disclosure Under Section 54(1)(d) of the Act: 

 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the 

Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

37. Disclosure Under Section 67(3) of the Act: 

 

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a 

scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

38. Disclosure regarding the appointment of Cost Auditor: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(1) and Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to appoint 

Cost auditor. 
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39. General:  

 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items during the year under review: 

 

a. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act - as the Company has not accepted any deposits during the year. 

 

b. Details of significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impacts the going concern status and Company’s 

operations in future – as no significant and material order has been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impacts the going concern 

status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

c. A statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual Directors has 

been made- is not applicable during the year under review. 

 

d. Details of recommendations of composition of Audit Committee and Vigil Mechanism under provisions of section 177(8) and 177(10) of the Companies 

Act, 2013- is not applicable to the Company. 

e. Details of ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and such other details under provisions of section 197(12) 

& 197(14) are not applicable to the Company. 

 

f. Details of Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

g. Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year alongwith their 

status as at the end of the financial year: No application was filed for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, by a financial or operational creditor 

or by the Company itself under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 before the National Company Law Tribunal. 

 

h. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks 

or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof- There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.  
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40. Appreciation:  

 

The Directors would like to express their appreciation to the Government of India, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Reserve Bank of 

India (RBI), the Association of Mutual Funds of India (AMFI), Indian Private Equity and Venture Capital Association (IVCA), and the Trustees for their 

continued support and guidance. 

  

The Directors would also like to thank the Auditors, Custodian, Fund Administration, Registrar & Transfer Agent of the schemes, KYC Registration 

Agencies, Bankers, Distributors, Brokers, Stock Exchanges, Depositories and all other service providers for their valuable support.  

   

The Directors wish to thank all unit holders for their strong support.   

  

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation to each and every employee of the Company for their valuable contribution to the growth of the 

Company. 

 

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

        

 

                Sd/-                                                                                         Sd/-                                                                                 

Aditi Kothari Desai  

Executive Director and Chairperson 

DIN- 00426799                                    

Sea view, 57 Worli Sea face,   

Mumbai – 400025 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 25, 2025 

 

Kalpen Parekh 

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 

DIN- 07925034 

602, CTS-808, Siddhachal Building,  

6th Floor, Vile Parle (E),  

Mumbai- 400057 
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Annexure I 

Form AOC-1  

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 

Name of the Company: DSP Asset Managers Private Limited   

Details of Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs) 

 

Number of subsidiaries:- Two  

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. in lakhs) 

A. Name of the subsidiary DSP Pension Fund 

Managers Private Limited 

DSP Fund Managers IFSC 

Private Limited 

1.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting 

period 

April to March 2025 April to March 2025  

2.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreign subsidiaries 

INR INR  

3.  Share capital 4,450 3700 

4.  Reserves & surplus 1,283.67 6013.56 

5.  Total assets 6183.15 11002.14 
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6.  Total Liabilities 449.48 1288.58 

7.  Investments 5,667.56 Nil 

8.  Turnover 626.46 7,997.49 

9.  Profit /(Loss) before taxation -469.26 6015.83 

10.  Provision for taxation -27.05 50.33 

11.  Profit/ (Loss) after taxation -442.21 5965.50 

12.  Proposed Dividend Nil Nil 

13.  % of shareholding 100% 100% 

 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- Nil  

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – Nil 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures – NOT APPLICABLE 

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Sr. No. Name of associates/Joint Ventures Name 

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date - 

2 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end 

(No., Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture, Extend of Holding%) 

- 

3 Description of how there is significant influence - 

4 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated - 

5 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet - 
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6 Profit/Loss for the year - 

7 Considered in Consolidation - 

8 Not Considered in Consolidation - 

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NA 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- NA 

 

As per our Report attached of even date 

For B S R & Co., LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

(FRN: 101248W/W-100022) 

 

 

         Sd/- 

Sameer Mota  

Partner 

(Membership Number 109928) 

 

 

 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

  

               Sd/-                                        Sd/-                                                            Sd/-                                                         Sd/-                                                                                                                                                      

Dhananjay Mungale  

Director 

DIN- 00007563                                     

 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 25, 2025 

Kalpen Parekh 

Managing Director &  

Chief Executive Officer 

DIN- 07925034 

 

Akilandeshwaran Iyer 

Chief Financial Officer  

 

Pritesh Majmudar  

Company Secretary  

Membership No.: FCS 6259 
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Annexure II 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY (U/S 135 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) 

I. Background: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) requires both public and private companies in India which have either (i) net worth of INR 500 crores or more or (ii) 

turnover of INR 1000 crores or more or (iii) net profit of INR 5 crores or more, within the immediately preceding financial year, to contribute 2% of their 

average net profits of the three preceding financial years to Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives or specify their reasons for not spending that amount 

in their Board of Director’s annual reports. 

II. Policy Statement 

DSP Asset Managers Private Limited (the “Company/AMC”) commits to conduct its business in a responsible, fair, transparent, and ethical manner and 

extend its’ responsibility to create a meaningful social impact to the local communities by undertaking CSR activities in accordance with the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and rules issued thereunder. 

III. Applicability and Regulations 

This Policy applies to DSP Asset Managers Private Limited.  

 

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules made thereunder read along with Secretarial Standards shall prevail over the provisions of 

the Policy. 

IV. Focus areas: 

 

a. In order to create a meaningful impact, during normal circumstances, the company will concentrate its CSR efforts in the following four areas, 

which will account upto 95% of its’ fund allocations: 

i. Education (upto 30%): Special emphasis on Primary education for underprivileged children. 

ii. Wildlife & Environment(upto 47%): Projects focused on restoring ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, protection of 
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animals including collaborative efforts required to train and empower institutions protecting wildlife and raise awareness amongst the 

people. 

iii. Adolescence & Women empowerment (upto 10%): Projects aimed at restoring gender equality – focusing on health, education, 

financial literacy, skill development, vocational training, etc. – and empowering them to make positive life choices. 

iv. Health including Mental Wellness (upto 10%): Projects aimed to improve the health including but not limited to mental wellness, 

provide necessary support (diagnosis, counselling, intervention, medication, etc) 

b. The Company shall also undertake other CSR projects/activities as listed in Schedule VII of the Act. However, allocation of funds to such 

projects/activities shall not exceed 5% of the yearly CSR budget. 

c. In the event of any natural calamities, pandemic or any other abnormal situations, the Company, with the approval of the Board, will focus on 

the urgent and emergency needs arising from these events which will lead to allocation of a significant portion of the CSR budget towards such 

activities thereby reducing the allocation to areas outlined above.  

d. The CSR projects/activities shall be undertaken in locations within India. 

e. The above thresholds may vary from time to time basis the approval by Board of Directors of the Company.  

 

V. CSR Organization: 

 

a. CSR Committee: The Board of Directors of the AMC has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors (“CSR Committee”) 

whose duties include: 

i. developing a CSR policy, 

ii. prepare and recommend to the Board an annual action plan for the CSR activities, 

iii. recommending CSR activities to be undertaken and the amount of spending on each activity, 

iv. lay down process for undertaking, implementing and monitoring CSR activities. 

v. The Committee shall recommend contribution of upto 5% of total CSR expenditure of the Company in one financial year for building the 

CSR capacities of personnel for AMC. 

 

b. CSR Cares: This shall comprise of employees from various functions and shall have the following duties and responsibilities: 

i. Recommend Policy changes to the CSR committee. 

ii. Develop CSR strategies and project identification mechanism. 

iii. Evaluation of NGOs, their proposals and allocation of funds. 
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iv. Coordinate CSR activities. 

v. Administration of CSR budget and its allocation. 

vi. Periodic assessment of the activities of NGOs supported by the Company and the impact generated. 

vii. Periodic reporting to the CSR committee. 

 

VI. Annual CSR Plan:  

The Annual CSR Plan shall be placed before the Board of Directors of the Company based on recommendation of the CSR Committee which shall 

outline: 

i. Project Proposals 

ii. Targeted Beneficiaries and their key needs 

iii. Alignment with Schedule VII 

iv. Project Goals and milestones 

v. Activities and Timelines including expected closure dates 

vi. CSR Budget with projections 

vii. Monitoring mechanism 

viii. Progress reporting and frequency of reports 

ix. Risks and mitigation strategies 

x. Any other information as may be required by the CSR Committee 

 

VII. Compliance requirements of Corporate Social Responsibility as per Companies Act, 2013.   

1. As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated January 22, 2021, the Central Government hereby makes rules to further to amend the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, wherein the Board of Company shall satisfy itself that the funds so disbursed 

have been utilized for the purposes and in the manner as approved by it and the Chief Financial Officer or the person responsible for financial 

management shall certify to the effect. 

 

2. The Board shall ensure that the administrative overheads shall not exceed five percent of total CSR expenditure of the Company for the financial 

year. 
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3. As per Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated February 11, 2022, the Central Government further amends the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, which states that Company covered under the provisions of sub-section (1) to section 135 shall furnish a report on Corporate 

Social Responsibility in Form CSR-2 to the Registrar for the preceding financial year.  

VIII. Modalities of Execution 

 

a. The day-to-day implementation and execution of CSR activities shall be carried out through the CSR Cares. 

b. Execution will largely be in the form of support to non-profit and voluntary organizations (NGOs) focusing on activities included in paragraph 

above. 

c. The Company will also support non-profit organizations which play the role of a catalyst in the themes/sectors identified above by working 

with both philanthropists and social entrepreneurs and bring together knowledge, funding and people. Their activities could be in the form of 

providing research on social issues to funders, conducting workshops and training for NGOs to build skills, providing a platform or forum for 

philanthropists to identify competent NGOs and for NGOs to raise funds. 

d. All such organizations shall have an established track record as specified in the Act (currently three years). 

e. The Company shall consider the following modes of support. 

i. financial support (monetary donations, grants,) 

ii. Sponsorship to workshops and training programs for NGOS to provide skill sets necessary to build and maintain a sustainable and 

scalable organization and accelerate their impact. 

iii. in-kind giving 

iv. other material support 

v. employee volunteering (making time, skills, mentoring, etc.) 

f. The Company could seek assistance from firms specializing in the social sector for research on social issues, to identify NGOs with good track 

record, good governance standards, and a sustainable model, and for monitoring of projects. 

g. The Company will also encourage its employees to contribute to CSR initiatives by matching charitable donations rupee for rupee through a 

Matching Donation Program. 

h. The Company will encourage its employees to donate their time to local causes and will accommodate reasonable requests for time away from 

the office to engage in community activities. 

i. The following activities do not qualify as CSR Activities under the Companies Act, 2013: 

i. Projects or activities not falling within Schedule VII 

http://www.dspim.com/
mailto:dspam@dspim.com


 

 

 

31 

DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 
Registered Office: The Ruby, 25th Floor, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (West), Mumbai 400028, India 
CIN U65990MH2021PTC362316 • +91 22 6657 8000 • www.dspim.com • Email: dspam@dspim.com  

 

ii. Activities undertaken in pursuance of normal course of business 

iii. Projects or programs or activities that benefit only the employees of the Company and their families 

iv. Direct or indirect contribution to any political party 

v. Activities supported by the Company on sponsorship basis for deriving marketing benefits for its funds or services. 

vi. Activity undertaken outside India except for training of Indian sports personnel representing any State or Union territory at national 

level or India at International level. 

vii. Activities carried out for fulfilment of any statutory obligations under any law (such as Labour Laws, Land Acquisition Act., etc.) 

in force in India. 

 

IX. CSR Budget 

 

a. At the commencement of each fiscal year the Board will approve an amount which shall not be less than as prescribed by the Act (Currently, 

a minimum of 2% of its average Net Profits in the immediately preceding three (3) financial years). Average Net profits shall mean the net 

profits of the Company as per the Profit & Loss Statement prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013; Net Profits shall exclude 

(a) profits arising from any overseas branch or branches of the Company (whether operated as a separate company or otherwise); or (b) 

dividend received from other companies in India. 

b. The surplus arising out of the CSR activities or projects shall not form part of the business profit of the Company and may be utilized either by 

transferring such amount to the same activity/project or transferring it to the Unspent CSR Account and spend it in pursuance of CSR policy 

and annual action plan of the company or transfer such surplus amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of six months of 

the expiry of the financial year. 

c. Further, any amount spent in excess of its obligation may be set off against the requirement to spend up to immediate succeeding three financial 

years’ subject to the conditions that: 

i. Such Excess Amount shall not include any surplus, and 

ii. The Board of the Company has passed resolution to give this effect. 

d. Contributions by employees may also be received and utilized in respect of the CSR activities undertaken. 

e. The Company will aim to grow this core amount over time and, depending on the profitability of the Company, may make specific one-off 

donations. 
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Annexure III 

 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (‘CSR’) ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT  

 

1) A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy.  

 

The Company commits to conduct its business in a responsible, fair, transparent, and ethical manner and extend its’ responsibility to create a meaningful 

social impact to the local communities by undertaking CSR activities in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 

and rules issued thereunder. 

 

In order to create a meaningful impact, during normal circumstances, the company will concentrate its CSR efforts in the following four areas, which 

will account for upto 95% of its’ fund allocations: 

 

i. Education (upto 30%): Special emphasis on Primary education for underprivileged children. 

ii. Wildlife & Environment (upto 47%): Projects focused on restoring ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, protection of animals 

including collaborative efforts required to train and empower institutions protecting wildlife and raise awareness amongst the people. 

iii. Adolescence & Women empowerment (upto 10%): Projects aimed at restoring gender equality – focusing on health, education, financial 

literacy, skill development, vocational training, etc. – and empowering them to make positive life choices. 

iv. Health including Mental Wellness (upto 10%): Projects aimed to improve the health including but not limited to mental wellness, provide 

necessary support (diagnosis, counselling, intervention, medication, etc.) 

 

The Company shall also undertake other CSR projects/activities as listed in Schedule VII of the Act. However, allocation of funds to such 

projects/activities shall not exceed 5% of the yearly CSR budget. 

 

2) The Composition of the CSR Committee:  

 

Sr. 

No.  

Name of Director Designation/Nature 

of Directorship  

Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee held during the 

Year 

Number of Meetings of CSR 

Committee attended during the 

Year 

1. Mr. Hemendra Kothari* Chairman of CSR 

Committee and Board 

4 4 

2. Mr. Ramadorai Subramanian  Independent Director 4 3 
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3.  Mr. Dhananjay Mungale Independent Director 4 3 

 

*Mr. Hemendra Kothari has resigned as a Chairman from the Board of Directors and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of DSP Asset Managers 

Private Limited with effect from April 11, 2025.  

 

3) Website link for Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

Board: https://www.dspim.com/mandatory-disclosures/corporate-social-responsibility 

 

4) Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.: Not Applicable 
 

5) (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135- 

 

  

 CSR Obligation for the Financial Year 2024-25: 

 

Sr. No Particulars  Amount  

(In Rs.) 

b) Two percent of average net profit of the company 

as per section 135(5) 

4,27,91,898 

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years. 

-  

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial 

year 

Nil 

e) Total CSR Obligation ((b)+(c)-(d)) 4,27,91,898 
 

 

 

6) a) Amount spent on CSR against ongoing projects for the Financial Year 2024-25: Nil  
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1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sr. 

No 

Name of the 

Project 

Item 

from 

the list 

of 

activitie

s in 

Schedul

e VII to 

the Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/No) 

Location 

of the 

project. 

Project 

duration 

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project 

(in Rs.). 

Amount spent 

in the current 

financial Year 

(in Rs.). 

Amount 

transferre

d to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project as 

per Section 

135(6) (in 

Rs.) 

Mode 

of 

Imple-

menta 

tion - 

Direct 

(Yes/

No) 

Mode of Implementation - 

Through Implementing 

Agency 

State District   Name CSR 

Registration 

Number 

             

1.              

2.              

 TOTAL            

 

 

b) Amount spent on CSR against other than ongoing projects for the Financial Year 2024-25:  
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sr. 

No 

Name of the 

Project 

Item from 

the list of 

activities in 

Schedule 

VII to the 

Act 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/ 

No) 

Location of 

the project. 

Project duration Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

spent in the 

current 

financial 

Year (in 

Rs.). 

Amount 

transferr

ed to 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

for the 

project 

as per 

Section 

135(6) (in 

Rs.) 

Mode of 

Imple-

menta 

tion - 

Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of Implementation - 

Through Implementing 

Agency 

State District      Name CSR 

Registration 

Number 

1.  Teacher’s 

Entrepreneurshi

p Project 

(ii)- 

promoti

ng 

educati

on 

Yes Rajasthan, 

Bihar & 

UP 

Alwar, 

Prayagraj

, Gaya, 

Munger, 

Muzaffar

pur, 

Jamui, 

Begusara

i 

1 Year 38,75,382 38,75,382 Nil No LeapFor

Word 

CSR00001037 
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2. DIKSHA- To 

strengthen 

capacity of 

government 

officials to 

ensure teachers 

are effectively 

supported and 

students have 

access to high 

quality learning 

(ii)- 

promoting 

education 

Yes Haryana All 1 year 38,69,492, 38,69,492 Nil No Leadershi

p for 

Skilled 

Education 

Foundatio

n 

CSR00001132 

3. Education of 

children from 

underprivileged 

background 

(ii)- 

promoting 

education 

Yes Karnataka Bangalore 1 year 27,90,000 27,90,000 Nil No Parikrma 

Humanity 

Foundatio

n 

CSR00000519 

4. Combatting 

Wildlife Crime 

Programme; 

Central Indian 

Landscape 

Project 

(iv) 

Ensuring 

environmen

tal 

sustainabili

ty 

Yes Maharashtra, 

Telangana,  

Rajasthan as 

well as in 

several 

divisions of 

Madhya 

Pradesh, 

Andhra 

Pradesh, 

Telangana, 

Chhattisgarh  

Melghat, 

Pench 

Panna, 

Sanjay 

Dubri, 

Tadoba-

Andhari, 

Navegaon

- Nagzira, 

Amrabad, 

Kawal, 

and 

Sahyadri 

Tiger 

Reserves 

1 year 57,17,998 57,17,998 Nil No Wildlife 

Conservat

ion Trust 

CSR00003682 
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5. Cooperative for 

Infectious 

Disease 

Surveillance at 

Wildlife-

Livestock 

Interface in 

Central India 

(iv) 

Ensuring 

environmen

tal 

sustainabili

ty 

Yes Maharashtra, 

Madhya 

Pradesh 

: Mandla, 

Balaghat, 

Seoni, 

Chindwar

a, 

Narmadap

uram, 

Betul, 

Damoh, 

Sagar, 

Umaria, 

Shahadol, 

Sidhi 

1 Year 72,74,938 72,74,938 Nil No Wildlife 

Conservat

ion Trust 

CSR00003682 

6. Greening 

production 

landscapes in 

Madhya 

Pradesh; Dhar 

district (Madhya 

Pradesh 

(iv) 

ensuring 

environmen

tal 

sustainabili

ty 

Yes Madhya 

Pradesh 

Dhar 1 Year 25,00,000 25,00,000 Nil No The 

Nature 

Conserva

ncy 

Centre 

CSR00001862 

7. ‘Strengthening 

community 

awareness and 

capacity for 

conservation and 

monitoring of 

freshwater 

ecosystems 

along River 

Bhima’ 

(iv) 

ensuring 

environmen

tal 

sustainabili

ty 

Yes Maharashtra  5 

months 

21,45,000 21,45,000 Nil No The 

Nature 

Conserva

ncy 

Centre 

CSR00001862 
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8. Prevention of 

Violence against 

Women and 

Children - 

Strengthen the 

public health 

sector’s 

response on 

gender-based 

violence and 

make violence 

against women 

and children a 

public health 

issue, Mumbai 

 

 

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 1 year 9,12,500 9,12,500 Nil No SNEHA CSR00002137 

9. From Margins to 

Mainstream”: 

AALI's 

Endeavor for 

Access to Justice 

for Women and 

Marginalized in 

1 district of Uttar 

Pradesh and 2 

districts of 

Uttarakhand 

 Yes Uttar Pradesh, 

Uttarakhand 

Lucknow, 

Nainital, 

Tehri 

Garhwal 

1 year 28,11,295 28,11,295 Nil No Associati

on for 

Advocacy 

and Legal 

Initiatives 

Trust 

(AALI) 

CSR00004941 

10. Mental health 

support for 

juvenile 

delinquents 

Project’ 

 Yes Maharashtra Mumbai, 

Pune 

8 

months 

7,50,000 7,50,000 Nil No Talk to 

Me 

CSR00020987 
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11. Provide 

Nutrition 

Support for 

children fighting 

cancer at 

Christian 

Medical College 

Hospital (CMC),  

(i)- 

Eradica

ting 

hunger, 

poverty 

and 

malnutr

ition 

 

Yes Tamil Nadu Vellore 4 

months 

16,55,000 16,55,000 Nil No Cuddles 

Foundatio

n 

CSR00001473 

12 Provide 

Nutrition 

Support for 

children fighting 

cancer at 

Regional Cancer 

Centre 

 Yes Chhattisgarh Raipur 1 year 5,00,000 5,00,000 Nil No Cuddles 

Foundatio

n 

CSR00001473 

13 Holistic support 

to girl children 

of women 

working in red 

light areas. 

(iii)- 

promoti

ng 

gender 

equalit

y, 

empow

ering 

women 

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai  20,00,000 20,00,000 Nil No Sahaara 

Charitable 

Society 

CSR00004895 

 TOTAL      3,68,01,605 3,68,01,605     

 

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: - Rs. 18,80,600/- 
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c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Not Applicable 

 

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2024-25- -: Rs. 3,86,82,205 

       

          e)  CSR Amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year 24-25: Rs. 41,09,693  

 

 Amount Unspent 

 

Total Amount Spent for the 

Financial Year  

 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per 

Section 135(6)  

 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII 

as per second proviso to Section 135(5)  

 

 Amount  

 

Date of transfer  

 

Amount  

 

Date of transfer  

 

Rs.3,86,82,205 - - Rs. 41,09,693 On or before 30th September 

2025 

 

f) Excess amount for set off, if any- None 

 

Sr. No Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as 

per section 135(5) 

- 

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year - 

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(2)-(1)] - 

4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years, if any 

- 

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 

years [(3)-(4)] 

- 
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7) Details of CSR amount spent/unspent for the preceding three financial years: 

 

Sr. 

No 

Preceding 

Financial Year  

 

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

section 135 (6)  

 

Balance 

Amount in 

unspent CSR 

Account 

under Sub-

section (6) of 

Section 135 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Spent in 

the Financial 

Year (in Rs)  

 

Amount transferred to any Fund 

specified under Schedule VII as 

per Section 135(6) if any  

Amount 

remaining to be 

spent in 

succeeding 

financial years  

 

Deficiency, if 

any 

      Amount (in 

Rs) 

Date of 

Transfer  

  

1 FY-1 (2021-22)  10,22,192 10,22,192 5,62,55,852 NIL NIL NIL 

2 FY-2 (2022-23) - - - - - - 

3 FY-3 (2023-24) - - - - - - 

 

8) Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year 

2024-25:   

 

• Yes  

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired –  

 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Short particulars of 

the property or 

asset(s) [including 

Complete address 

and location of the 

property] 

Pincode of 

the 

property 

or asset(s) 

Date of creation Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of 

the registered owner 

     CSR 

Registration 

Name Registered 

Address 
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Number, if 

applicable 

1 Printer & office 

furniture at Jabalpur 

field station. 

 

Coolers (TATA and 

KenStar) units-2 

Leather Office 

Executive Revolving 

Chairs (units-2) 

 

HP LaserJet Printer 

(Pro MFP M126nw) 

(Print+Copy+Scan) 

 

Jabalpur Field Station-

482003 

16-05-2024 

16-05-2024 

30-05-2024 

Rs.72,74,938/- 

WCT 

‘Cooperative 

for Infectious 

Disease 

Surveillance at 

Wildlife-

Livestock 

Interface in 

Central India 

Project. 

 

Amount spent 

on capital 

asset created: 

Rs.64,600/- 

 

CSR00003682 Wildlife 

Conservation 

Trust 

11th Floor, 

Mafatlal 

Centre, 

Nariman 

Point, 

Mumbai 

400021 

2 3 Laptops 

 

 

400013 

400022 

400088 

31-Dec-24 Rs. 9,12,500 

SNEHA - 

‘Prevention of 

Violence 

against 

Women and 

Children - 

Strengthen the 

public health 

sector’s 

response on 

gender-based 

violence and 

make violence 

against 

women and 

- 

CSR00002137 

SNEHA 53, Sea 

Springs, BJ 

Road, 

Bandstand, 

Bandra West, 

Mumbai 

400050 
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children a 

public health 

issue, 

Mumbai. 

 

Amount spent 

on capital 

asset created: 

Rs.1,18,500/- 

 

 

9) Specify the reason(s) if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profits as per Section 135(5):  

 

During the audit, it was identified there was a computational error while arriving at the CSR obligation amount for FY 2024-25. The CSR 

obligation was incorrectly computed as INR 3,85,70,530 instead of INR 4,27,91,898 This resulted in a shortfall of INR 41,09,693 in meeting the 

statutory CSR obligation. The mentioned unspent CSR amount for the said financial year, will be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, and will be spent or transferred within the stipulated 

timelines as prescribed under the law. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

          

            Sd/-                                                                                                                                                                             

Aditi Kothari Desai 

Executive Director and Chairperson 

DIN- 00426799 

Sea view, 57 Worli Sea face,   

Mumbai – 400025 

 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 25, 2025 

 

         

          Sd/-     

Kalpen Parekh 

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 

DIN- 07925034 

602, CTS-808, Siddhachal Building,  

6th Floor, Vile Parle (E),  

Mumbai- 400057 

******** 
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’Independent Auditor s Report
To the Members of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited (the 
“Company”) which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the standalone 
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in 
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone 
financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and 
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion 
on the standalone financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors from 1 April 2025 to 7 April
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the standalone financial
statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
the Note 43(i) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 43(ii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
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trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company 
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYN5420
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(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year.  In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  No discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering asset management and investment
advisory services.  Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has made investments in
companies and other parties, and granted unsecured loans to other parties, in respect of which
the requisite information is as below. During the year, the Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any secured loans or any advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties or
made investments in firms and limited liability partnerships or granted any unsecured loans to
companies, firms or limited liability partnerships.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates as below:
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Particulars Loans (In lakhs)

Aggregate amount during the year
Others

  179

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Others*

  261

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion, investments made during the year and the terms and conditions
of the grant of unsecured loans during the year are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to same parties. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans during
the year.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Further, the Company has not
given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax during the year since effective 1
July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Professional Tax, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues 
have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Professional Tax, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues were in 
arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Income-Tax, Service Tax and Goods
and Service Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of 
the statute

Nature of 
the Dues

Amount 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Remark

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

0.89 Assessment 
Year 2006-
2007

Commissione
r of Income 
Tax (Appeals) 
(‘CIT (A)’)

Disallowance of 
expeses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961, short credit 
of TDS granted 
and Levy of 
interest under 
section 234B and 
234C of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

28.21 AY 2012-13 CIT (A) Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961, and Levy of 
interest under 
section 234B and 
234C of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

32.65 AY 2013-14 CIT (A) Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961 and Levy of 
interest under 
section 234B and 
234C of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

38.35 AY 2014-15 CIT (A) Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
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1961, short credit 
of TDS granted 
and Levy of 
interest under 
section 234B and 
234C of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

32.57 AY 2018-19 CIT (A) Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961 and 
disallowance of 
deduction claimed 
under section 80G 
of Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax

163.4 AY 2020-21 CIT (A) Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961, 
disallowance of 
deduction claimed 
under section 80G 
of Income Tax Act, 
1961, 
disallowance of 
gratuity paid 
during the year 
and disallowance 
of Income 
Computation and 
Disclosure 
Standards (‘ICDS’) 
adjustment for 
depreciation as 
per books and as 
per Income Tax 
Act, 1961 along 
with penalty.

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax 

150.80 AY 2020-21 CIT (A) Incorrect 
computation of 
surcharge and 
interest

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax 

66.34 AY 2021-22 CIT (A) Incorrect 
computation of 
surcharge and 
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interest

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Income 
Tax 

47.29 AY 2021-22 Income Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal

Disallowance of 
expenses under 
section 14A of the 
Income Tax Act, 
1961

Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

24.12 Financial 
Year (FY) 
2004-2009

Supreintende
nt (Audit) GR 
V- Central
Excise

Interest on 
delayed payment 
of Service Tax

Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

17.9 FY 2014-17 Commissione
r of Central 
Goods and 
Service Tax

Serice Tax on 
transaction 
charges

Goods & 
Services 
Tax Act, 
2017

Goods and 
Service 
Tax

10.15 FY 2018-19 Sales Tax 
Officer Delhi

Excess claim of 
Input Tax Credit 
(‘ITC’) on reverse 
charge supplies 
and ITC claimed 
on ineligible 
supplies 
mentioned in 
section 17(5) of 
Goods & Services 
Tax Act, 2017

Goods & 
Services 
Tax Act, 
2017

Goods and 
Service 
Tax

3,706.33 FY 2017-18 
and FY 2018-
19 

GST 
Appellate 
Authority

Disallowance of 
ITC on distributor' 
commission paid 
directly to 
Distributors as well 
as reimbursed to 
Mutual Fund

Goods & 
Services 
Tax Act, 
2017

Goods and 
Service 
Tax

9.65 FY 2020-21 GST 
Appellate 
Authority

ITC Mismatch 
GSTR3B vs 
GSTR2A

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any 
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company did not raise any funds during
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended).  Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other than
ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act till the date of our report. 
However, the time period for such transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the financial year as 
permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed 
till the date of our report.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYN5420
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Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DSP Asset 
Managers Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYN5420
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’Independent Auditor s Report
To the Members of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DSP Asset Managers Private Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 
March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based 
on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as 
was audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group as at 31 March 2025, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 
along with the consideration of report of the other auditor referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” 
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these  consolidated   financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive 
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the  consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
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of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
has been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other 
Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

a. We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total 
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 6,183 lac as at 31 March 2025, total revenues 
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 626 lac and net cash flows (before consolidation 
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 261 lac for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor 
whose report has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this 
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates 
to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the 
other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as was audited by other auditor, 
as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the report of the other auditor.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
from 1 April 2025 to 7 April 2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 
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March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other 
auditor on separate financial statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2025 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 30 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

b. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2025.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during 
the year ended 31 March 2025.

d (i) The management has represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary company that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 45 (i) to the consolidated financial 
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary company that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 45 (ii) to the consolidated financial 
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditor of the subsidiary company 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has 
come to our or other auditor notice that has caused us or the other auditor to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared 
nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective 
auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditors of 
such subsidiary companies did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
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with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred 
subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the report 
of the statutory auditor of a subsidiary company incorporated in India which was not audited by us, 
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India since none of these companies is a public company. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required 
to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYM3835
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(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following 
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have 
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditor in his 
report under the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. 
No.

Name of the entities CIN Holding 
Company/Subsi

diary/ JV/ 
Associate

Clause 
number of the 
CARO report 

which is 
unfavourable 
or qualified or 

adverse

 1 DSP Fund Managers 
IFSC Private Limited 

U65990GJ2022
PTC135942 

Subsidiary  vii(a)

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYM3835
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Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of DSP Asset Managers Private 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, 
we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company , as of that date.

In our opinion the Holding Company, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding Company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Sameer Mota

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 109928

Date: 25 July 2025 ICAI UDIN:25109928BMNUYM3835




































































































































